

Executive Regulation

For Hunting Terrestrial Wildlife Species

For the Environmental Law issued by the Royal Decree No. (m/165), dated 19/11/1441 Hijri

*** Note: In the event of any discrepancy between the Arabic original version of this Executive Regulation and its English translation, the Arabic version prevails ***







Contents

Article (1) – Definitions4
Article (2) – Scope of Application5
Article (3) – The Center's Scope of Work regarding Hunting Wildlife Animal Species5
Article (4) – Species and Numbers of Wildlife Animal Species6
Article (5) – Hunting Sites7
Article (6) – Hunting Seasons and Times
Article (7) – Hunting Tools and Equipment8
Article (8) – Licenses related to Hunting8
First: Hunting Licenses8
Second: Licenses for Private Hunting Reserves9
Third: Licenses for Hunting Wildlife Animal Species for Scientific and Research
Purposes
Fourth: Hunting Licenses for Regulating Numbers and Preserving Species11
Article (9) – Trading Hunted Wildlife Animal Species11
Article (10) – Apprehension of Violations and Imposition of Penalties12
Table (1) – Classification of Violations and Penalties13
Table (2) – Penalties for Hunting Living Species
Appendix (1) – List of Endemic Birds in the Kingdom of Saudi



Article (1) – Definitions

The following terms and expressions – wherever they appear in this Executive Regulation – shall have the meanings set forth below, except where it is therein expressly otherwise:

Law: Environmental Law.

Founding Regulations: Founding Regulations of the National Center for Wildlife Development.

Executive Regulation: Executive Regulation for Hunting Terrestrial Wildlife Species.

Ministry: Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture.

Minister: Minister of Environment, Water and Agriculture.

Center: National Center for Wildlife Development.

Committee: Violations' Review Committee.

Inspectors: Employees designated by the Minister or the chairman of the board of directors of the Center to inspect, investigate, substantiate and apprehend violations to the provisions of this Executive Regulation.

Security Authorities: Any security authority within the Ministry of Interior, within its jurisdiction.

Person: Any public or private natural or legal person.

License: A document issued by the Center authorizing a person to undertake an environmental activity.

Licensee: A person who is granted a license in accordance with the provisions of this Executive Regulation.

Wildlife species: Any living or dead organism which scientifically belongs to the animal or plant groupings, excluding human and domestic or domesticated animals.

Habitats: Sites where wildlife species can naturally live, grow or reproduce, in an interconnected and integrated way with the surrounding conditions.

Animal Wildlife Species: All wildlife species which scientifically belong to the animal groups and which live and wander freely on the Kingdom's land (mammals, predators, birds, reptiles, etc.).

Vegetation Cover Lands: Any state-owned land that contains wild plants and the like. These include rangelands, forests, national, terrestrial, and geological parks, wetlands, steppe regions, sandy areas (dunes), mountain areas, valleys, coastal areas, and islands.

Wetlands: Lands which are naturally or artificially, permanently or temporarily covered with stagnant or running water, freshwater, or brackish water. These areas have special biological systems and attract migratory birds. They include but are not limited to lakes, swamps, ponds, floodplains, marshes, and running water estuaries.



Hunting: Engaging, chasing, capturing, injuring, slaying, or other acts that constitute an effective hunting of any wildlife animal species, unless otherwise specified by the Center.

Derivative: Any substance extracted from wildlife species, whether naturally or artificially.

Product: Any non-manufactured or partially or entirely manufactured part of a wildlife species.

Private Hunting Reserve: A fenced private site with defined entrances and exits within which hunting is allowed by virtue of a license from the Center.

Article (2) – Scope of Application

The provisions of this Executive Regulation shall apply to all terrestrial wildlife animal species inside the Kingdom's territory and aim at implementing the environment law provisions related to wildlife animal species.

Article (3) – The Center's Scope of Work regarding Hunting Wildlife Animal Species

The Center shall undertake the following:

- (1) Issuing and adopting when needed lists of species whose hunting is allowed or prohibited.
- (2) Issuing and adopting when needed hunting quantities for each species and the amounts allowed for each license.
- (3) Designating sites where hunting is allowed in the Kingdom.
- (4) Setting the starting and ending dates of hunting seasons as well as permitted times for hunting and implementing temporary hunting prohibitions in the Kingdom.
- (5) Specifying the permitted or prohibited hunting tools and equipment.
- (6) Issuing and disseminating hunting-related data, which specifies the species allowed for hunting, hunting seasons and sites, permitted tools, etc. on a periodic basis during time periods set by the Center.
- (7) Suggesting a detailed list of violations of the law and the Executive Regulations along with the related penalties and submitting it to the Ministry.
- (8) Implementing international and regional conventions on wildlife animal species and hunting that are ratified by the Kingdom.
- (9) Setting and approving rules, controls, and requirements related to licensing mechanisms for hunting and hunting reserves and collecting the relevant financial dues.
- (10) Issuing and renewing licenses for hunting and hunting reserves.
- (11) Issuing and publishing national reports on hunting.



- (12) Identifying mechanisms and procedures for inspection, control, and reporting of violations to the law and Executive Regulations.
- (13) Inspection and monitoring, and apprehending violations of the law and Executive Regulations.
- (14) Establishing and managing shelters for seized wildlife species.
- (15) Coordinating with Ministry of Interior with regard to licensing firearms for hunting.
- (16) Coordinating with Ministry of Interior with regard to enforcing the Executive Regulations and apprehending hunting violations.
- (17) Coordinating with Ministry of Health with regard to public safety conditions to be stipulated during hunting activities.
- (18) Coordinating with Deputy Ministry of Animal Resources with regard to regulating hunting activities in the event of epidemic disease outbreaks.
- (19) Coordinating with the National Center for Vegetation Cover with regard to regulating hunting activities in vegetation cover lands.
- (20) Organizing environmental guidance activities related to hunting, including sessions, seminars, specialized working sessions, and media campaigns.

Article (4) – Species and Numbers of Wildlife Animal Species

- (1) The Center shall issue when needed lists of wildlife animal species whose hunting is permitted or prohibited, inclusive of migratory birds.
- (2) The Center shall issue the necessary decisions on the temporal or permanent prohibition of hunting any wildlife animal species which are deemed by the Center the Center important species for ecological balance.
- (3) In addition to the species' lists referred to in the two aforementioned clauses, it is totally prohibited to hunt the following species:

Predators Arabian leopard, hyena, wolf, jackal, lynx, sand cat, the common genet, and			
	badger		
Ungulates Arabian Oryx, goitered gazelle (sandy), Idmi gazelle (mountain, Farasan), and N			
Birds All species of endemic birds listed in Appendix (1).			

(4) The hunting of endangered wildlife animal species is prohibited, and a list of such species shall be issued by the Center periodically.



- (5) The hunting of gestating wildlife animal species or their offspring, or tampering with their nests, eggs, or habitats are prohibited.
- (6) The Center shall issue at the beginning of each hunting season a list of wildlife animal species allowed for hunting during the hunting season, along with the permissible hunting quantities for each during the license term.
- (7) For each hunting license, the Center shall specify the wildlife animal species and the permissible hunting quantities.

Article (5) – Hunting Sites

- (1) Hunting is permitted in sites designated and periodically announced by the Center.
- (2) The hunting of wildlife animal species is prohibited in the following places:
 - Within the two Holy Shrines.
 - Within cities and villages.
 - Within heritage sites.
 - Within wetlands and a radius of 2 kilometers therefrom.
 - Within all declared protected areas unless otherwise specified in a license issued by the Center under specific requirements and controls.
 - Within all vegetation cover lands unless otherwise specified in a license issued by the Center under specific requirements and controls.
 - The land border area defined pursuant to the border security law and Executive Regulations thereof.
 - Main and side roads and within a distance of 2 kilometers therefrom.
 - Beach premises.
 - Shoreline of all the Kingdom's coasts and at a width of 20 kilometers therefrom.
 - Any other places specified by the Center.
- (3) The use or leasing of farms, rest houses, and private properties for hunting purposes is prohibited.
- (4) The sites where hunting is allowed must be at least 2 kilometers away from residential areas, mosques, and public and private facilities.

Article (6) – Hunting Seasons and Times

(1) Hunting is prohibited outside the times and dates set by the Center.



- (2) Hunting at night is prohibited, and the ban period shall extend from one hour before sunset to one hour after sunrise.
- (3) The Center shall as needed update and amend hunting seasons and times, and issue the necessary relevant decisions.

Article (7) – Hunting Tools and Equipment

- (1) It is prohibited to use tools and equipment that enable hunting more than one species at a time, such as: shotguns, nets, falling nets, traps, trapping pits, glues and adhesives, bright lights, etc.
- (2) It is prohibited to use all kinds of firearms in hunting, except inside the private hunting reserves licensed by the Center and as specified by the Center.
- (3) It is prohibited to use tools that attract wildlife species in hunting, such as owls, artificial and natural floating birds, and hunting call devices and recorders that reproduce sounds of birds and animals, etc.
- (4) It is prohibited to use chemicals, narcotic drugs, poisons, gas, smoke, and electric devices in hunting.
- (5) It is prohibited to use hunting tools and equipment aboard all kinds of moving vehicles.
- (6) It is prohibited to use any vehicle to chase wildlife animal species.
- (7) It is prohibited to hunt with weapons other than those licensed by relevant authorities and allowed for hunting by the Center, or other means the Center specifies.
- (8) The Center shall issue when needed decisions including updated lists of allowed and prohibited hunting tools and equipment.
- (9) The Center shall prohibit upon coordination with Ministry of Interior the sale, display, promotion, trade, or acquisition of any firearms, air weapons, or shotguns that are prohibited for the purpose of hunting inside the Kingdom.
- (10) The Center shall prohibit upon coordination with relevant authorities the sale, display, promotion, trade, or acquisition of any other tools or equipment that are not specified in the aforementioned clause and that are prohibited for the purpose of hunting inside the Kingdom.

Article (8) – Licenses related to Hunting

First: Hunting Licenses

(1) Engaging in hunting activities without a prior license from the Center, is prohibited.



- (2) The hunting license is personal and may not be assigned to a person other than the licensee. It must be carried along with the license of weapons used for hunting, and must be presented to inspectors and the competent security authority.
- (3) The person applying for a hunting license must:
 - a. Be at least twenty-one years old.
 - b. Not have committed two violations or more of the Executive Regulations with less than two years elapsed since the last decision was issued on the last violation.
- (4) The person applying for a hunting license must submit an application to the Center or whoever the Center delegates, enclosed with the documents specified by the Center.
- (5) The Center shall issue its decision on license applications within five (5) working days as of the registration date of each completed application.
- (6) The issued hunting license shall include the following:
 - a. Licensee's name, identity proof (ID/residence card number) and address.
 - b. Types of wildlife animal species the licensee is allowed to hunt.
 - c. Hunting tools and equipment permitted for use for each wildlife animal species permitted for hunting.
 - d. Quantities of wildlife animal species permitted for hunting in the license terms.
 - e. The designated hunting site or area.
 - f. The license term.
- (7) The license shall be granted upon the settlement of the financial dues specified by the Center.
- (8) The license term must not exceed one year from issuance date.
- (9) Holders of licenses must comply with its requirements and renew them through the Center upon their expiry.
- (10) Every applicant for license renewal must submit an application enclosed with the documents specified by the Center.

Second: Licenses for Private Hunting Reserves

- (1) The Center shall issue and disseminate requirements, controls, and required instructions that are necessary for licensing hunting reserves.
- (2) It is prohibited to establish or operate a hunting reserve without a prior license from the Center.
- (3) It is prohibited to use wildlife animal species of unknown origin or that obtained or multiplied in an illegal manner for the purpose of using them in hunting reserves, unless otherwise specified by the Center.



- (4) Every applicant for a license for a private hunting reserve must submit an application to the Center, enclosed with the documents specified by the Center.
- (5) The Center shall issue its decision on license applications within two months as of the registration date of each completed application.
- (6) The license issued for a private hunting reserve shall include the following:
 - a. Commercial register number.
 - b. The wildlife animal species the licensee has the right to display for hunting in the hunting reserve.
 - c. Hunting times permitted in the hunting reserve.
 - d. Hunting means, tools, and equipment permitted for use in the hunting reserve.
 - e. The license term.
- (7) The license shall be granted upon the settlement of financial dues specified by the Center.
- (8) The license term shall not exceed two (2) years as of the date of issuance.
- (9) Copies of the private license of hunting reserve must be displayed at each reserve entrance.
- (10) Any person not holding a valid hunting license is prohibited from hunting in private hunting reserves.
- (11) The private hunting reserve licensee must provide every hunter with a hunting statement, specifying types of the hunted wildlife animal species, and the amounts of hunted animals of each species. The statement shall also include the person's name, his hunting license number, and the reserve stamp.
- (12) Every hunting licensee when hunting in private hunting reserves must keep the hunted terrestrial wildlife animal species in the vehicle used for hunting and show them to inspectors or security authorities upon their request along with the statement issued by the reserve, as per the previous clause.
- (13) The private hunting reserve licensee must appoint controllers and supervisors to ensure oversight of hunting inside the reserve and to prevent hunting violations the use of prohibited hunting means, or hunting in prohibited times and periods according to the Executive Regulations. The reserve owner shall notify the Center of any violations that may occur in the reserve.
- (14) The private hunting reserve licensee must provide the Center with monthly reports that include the following information:
 - a. Data on hunters, including their names and hunting license numbers.
 - b. Data on hunted or dead species, including amounts per species.
 - c. Any other information related to the reserve activities as may be requested by the Center.



- (15) The private hunting reserve licensee must comply with the license requirements and must renew it through the Center upon expiry.
- (16) Every applicant for renewal of a private hunting reserve license must submit an application enclosed with the documents specified by the Center.

Third: Licenses for Hunting Wildlife Animal Species for Scientific and Research Purposes

- (1) It is prohibited to hunt wildlife animal species for scientific and research purposes without a prior license from the Center.
- (2) The Center shall issue licenses for hunting wildlife animal species for scientific and research purposes, and if hunted animals are released alive, this shall be in accordance with the requirements and controls set by the Center.
- (3) The Center shall set the requirements and controls related to granting hunting licenses for scientific and research purposes.
- (4) The Center shall issue its decision on license applications within two (2) months as of the registration date of each completed application.
- (5) The license term shall extend as the research requires.
- (6) Research teams must comply with the requirements of licenses for hunting wildlife animal species for scientific and research purposes.
- (7) Research teams must provide the Center with a copy of the research's findings upon completion thereof, including photographs, data, and maps.

Fourth: Hunting Licenses for Regulating Numbers and Preserving Species

- (1) The Center shall issue licenses for hunting specific wildlife animal species in order to regulate their numbers and preserve their species.
- (2) These licenses include the amounts permitted for hunting, hunting seasons and times, tools and equipment permitted for hunting, and the license term.
- (3) The Center shall set the necessary requirements and controls to regulate this activity.

Article (9) – Trading Hunted Wildlife Animal Species

- (1) Every hunting licensee shall keep the hunted wildlife animal species in the hunting vehicle and show them to inspectors or to the competent security authority.
- (2) It is prohibited to display hunted wildlife animal species outside vehicles, on highways, on the Internet or any other means of display.



- (3) It is prohibited to sell hunted wildlife animal species or their products or derivatives without a prior license from the Center.
- (4) It is prohibited to export hunted wildlife animal species without a prior license from the Center.

Article (10) – Apprehension of Violations and Imposition of Penalties

Violations of the Executive Regulations shall be apprehended, penalties shall be applied, and compensation for the environmental damage caused by the violations shall be assessed in accordance with the Executive Regulations for Apprehension of Violations and Imposition of Penalties, of the Environmental Law. Tables (1) and (2) set forth violations and penalties.



 $Table\ (1)-Classification\ of\ Violations\ and\ Penalties$

#		Violation	Penalty (SAR) – First time	
	Hunting Violations			
	1	Hunting without a License	10,000 (Ten Thousand) Saudi Riyals	
	2	Hunting in Places where Hunting is Prohibited	5,000 (Five Thousand) Saudi Riyals	
	3	Hunting in Seasons and Times During which Hunting is Prohibited	5,000 (Five Thousand) Saudi Riyals	
	4	Not Holding a Hunting License while Hunting	10,000 (Ten Thousand) Saudi Riyals	
\	5	Hunting Prohibited Species	The violator shall pay a penalty according to the list set forth in table (2)	
	6	Hunting Gestating Female Wildlife Species	The violator shall pay double the amount specified in the list set forth in table (2)	
/	7	Hunting the Offspring of Wildlife Species	The violator shall pay double the amount specified in the list set forth in table (2)	
	8	Hunting a Number of Species that Exceeds the Limit Set in the License	I he violator shall hav a penalty for each hilhted species	
	9	Damaging or Harming the Eggs, Nests, or Habitats of Wildlife Species	A penalty of no more than 1,000,000 (one million) Saudi Riyals, and the penalty shall be estimated depending on the violation gravity as determined by the Center	
	Disposing of hunted species or their products or derivatives			
		Displaying Hunted Wildlife Species	20,000 (twenty thousand) Saudi Riyals	
	11	Selling Hunted Wildlife Species or their Products or Derivatives without a License	20,000 (twenty thousand) Saudi Riyals	
	12	Exporting Hunted Wildlife Species without a License	Sanctions shall be applied according to the Executive Regulation for Trading in Wildlife Species	
Private Hunting Reserves Violations				
	13	Not Complying with the Requirements of Private Hunting Reserve Licenses	A penalty of no more than 50,000 (fifty thousand) Saudi Riyals that shall be estimated by the Center depending on the number of requirements and the importance of each requirement	
	14	Operating a Private Hunting Reserve without a valid License	A penalty of no less than 100,000 (one hundred thousand) Saudi Riyals and no more than 1,000,000 (one million)	



#	Violation	Penalty (SAR) – First time
		Saudi Riyals, and the committee shall estimate the penalty
		amount depending on the violation gravity
	Using or Leasing Farms, Rest	A penalty of no less than 100,000 (one hundred thousand)
1.5	Houses, or Private Properties for	Saudi Riyals and no more than 1,000,000 (one million)
15	Hunting Purposes	Saudi Riyals, and the committee shall estimate the penalty
		amount depending on the violation gravity
	Using Wildlife Animal Species of	A penalty of no less than 100,000 (one hundred thousand)
	Unknown Origin or that were	Saudi Riyals and no more than 1,000,000 (one million)
16	Obtained or Multiplied in an	Saudi Riyals, and the committee shall estimate the penalty
	Irregular Manner to be Used in	amount depending on the violation gravity.
	Hunting Reserves	
	Penalties for Viola	ations related to Hunting Means
17	Using Firearms for Hunting	80,000 (eighty thousand) Saudi Riyals
10	Using Shotguns, Nets, Falling Nets,	100,000 (one hundred thousand) Saudi Riyals
18	Traps, and Trapping Pits	100,000 (one numerou mousum) suddi Riyais
10	Using Glues, Adhesives, and Bright	10,000 (ten thousand) Saudi Riyals
19	Lights	10,000 (tell tilousalid) Saddi Riyalis
20	Using Chemicals, Narcotic Drugs,	80,000 (eighty thousand) Saudi Riyals
20	and Poisons	50,000 (eighty mousand) Saudi Riyais
21	Using Gas, Smoke, and Electric	80,000 (eighty thousand) Saudi Riyals
21	Devices	50,000 (eighty thousand) Saudi Riyais
	Using Hunting Rifles aboard all	100 000 (and hundred the areas d) Could District
22	Kinds of Moving Vehicles	100,000 (one hundred thousand) Saudi Riyals
	Using Means that Attract Wildlife	50,000 (fifty thousand) Saudi Bivala
23	Species	50,000 (fifty thousand) Saudi Riyals



Table (2) – Penalties for Hunting Living Species

#	English name	Scientific Name	Penalty (Saudi Riyals) per species
		Mammals	
1	Arabian Oryx	Oryx Leucoryx	90,000
2	Goitered Gazelle (Sandy)	Gazella Marica	25,000
3	Idmi Gazelle (Mountain)	Gazella Arabica	35,000
4	Nubian Ibex	Capra Nubiana	60,000
5	Arabian Leopard	Panthera Pardus Nimr	400,000
6	Arabian Wolf	Canis Lupus Arabs	80,000
7	Jackal	Canis Aureus	80,000
8	Striped Hyena	Hyaena Hyaena	80,000
9	Wild Rabbit	Lepus Capensis	18,000
10	Honey Badger Mellivora Capensis		80,000
11	Red Fox	Vulpes Vulpes	60,000
12	Blanford's Fox	Vulpes Cana	60,000
13/	Rüppell's Fox	Vulpes Rueppelli	60,000
14	Fennec Fox	Vulpes Zerda	60,000
15	Sand Cat	Felis Margarita	70,000
16	Caracal	Caracal Caracal	70,000
17	/		70,000
18	Rock Hyrax	Procavia Capensis	25,000
19	Common Genet	Genetta Genetta	50,000
20	Indian Crested Porcupine	Hystrix Indica	70,000
Birds			
1	Red-Necked Ostrich	Struthio Camelus	25,000
2	Helmeted Guineafowl	Numida Meleagris	3,000
3	Common Quail	Coturnix Coturnix	1,500



4	Common Buttonquail	Turnix Sylvaticus	1,500
5	5 Harlequin Quail Coturnix Delegorguei		1,500
6 Chukar Partridge		Alectoris Chukar	3,000
7	Philby's Partridge	Alectoris Philbyi	10,000
8	Arabian Partridge	Alectoris Melanocephala	10,000
9	See-See Partridge	Ammoperdix Griseogularis	5,000
10			2,500
1/1	Grey Francolin	Francolinus Pondicerianus	1,500
12	Greater Flamingo	Phoenicopterus Roseus	5,000
13	Common Wood Pigeon	Columba Palumbus	1,000
14	African Olive Pigeon	Columba Arquatrix	1,000
15	European Turtle Dove	Streptopelia Turtur	1,500
16	Bruce's Green Pigeon	Treron Waalia	1,000
17	Black-Bellied Sandgrouse	Pterocles Orientalis	1,000
18	Chestnut-Bellied Sandgrouse	Pterocles Exustus	1,000
19	Spotted Sandgrouse	Pterocles Senegallus	1,000
20	Crowned Sandgrouse	Pterocles Coronatus	1,000
21	Pin-Tailed Sandgrouse	Pterocles Alchata	1,000
22	Lichtenstein's Sandgrouse	Pterocles Lichtensteinii	1,000
23	Asir Magpie	Pica Asirensis	100,000
24	Demoiselle Crane	Anthropoides Virgo	12,000
25	Common Crane	Grus Grus	12,000
26	Macqueen's Bustard	Chlamydotis Macqueenii	25,000
27	Arabian Bustard	Ardeotis Arabs	50,000
28	Northern Bald Ibis	Geronticus Eremita	200,000
29	Pink-Backed Pelican	Pelecanus Rufescens	15,000
30 Great White Pelican Pelecanus		Pelecanus Onocrotalus	10,000
31	Socotra Cormorant	Phalacrocorax Nigrogularis	8,000



Eurasian Stone- Curlew			Burhinus Oedicnemus	5,000
33			Burhinus Capensis	5,000
34			Dromas Ardeola	10,000
35			Cursorius Cursor	5,000
36 Endemic Passerine		demic Passerine		
36-1		Arabian Woodpecker	Dendrocopos Dorae	5,000
36-2	2	Lesser Whitethroat	Curruca	5,000
36-3	3 Yemen Warbler		Curruca Buryi	5,000
36-4	Ļ	Abyssinian White-Eye	Zosterops Abyssinicus	5,000
36-5		Yemen Thrush	Turdus Menachensis	5,000
36-6	5	Arabian Golden Sparrow	Passer Euchlorus	5,000
36-7		Arabian Waxbill	Estrilda Rufibarba	5,000
36-8	3	Shining Sunbird	Cinnyris Habessinicus	5,000
36-9		Arabian Serin	Crithagra Rothschildi	5,000
36-1	0	Yemen Serin	Crithagra Menachensis	5,000
36-1	1	Arabian Golden- Winged Grosbeak	Rhynchostruthus Percivali	5,000
36-1	2	Yemen Linnet	Acanthis Yemenensis	5,000
37	Bre	eeding Passerine	Breeding Passerine	3,000
38	38 Migrant Passerine		Migrant Passerine	2,000
Reptiles				
		iny-Tailed Lizards Il Local Species)	Uromastyx Spp	3,000



Appendix (1) – List of Endemic Birds in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

#	English name	Scientific name
	Guineafowl	Numida Meleagris
2	Philby's Partridge	Alectoris Philbyi
3	Arabian Partridge	Alectoris Melanocephala
4	Asir Magpie	Pica Asirensis
5	Socotra Cormorant	Phalacrocorax Nigrogularis
6	Arabian Woodpecker	Dendrocopos Dorae
7	Arabian Warbler	Curruca Leucomelaena
8	Yemen Warbler	Curruca Buryi
9	Abyssinian White-Eye	Zosterops Abyssinicus
10	Yemen Thrush	Turdus Menachensis
11	Arabian Golden Sparrow	Passer Euchlorus
12	Arabian Waxbill	Estrilda Rufibarba
13	Shining Sunbird	Cinnyris Habessinicus
14	Arabian Serin	Crithagra Rothschildi
15	Yemen Serin	Crithagra Menachensis
16	Arabian Golden-Winged Grosbeak	Rhynchostruthus Percivali
17	Yemen Linnet	Acanthis Yemenensis
18	White-Eyed Gull	Ichthyaetus Leucophthalmus
19	Sooty Gull	Ichthyaetus Hemprichii